
Minutes 
Meeting No 5– 22 April 2010 

 1 

 

Independent Market Operator 

IMO PROCEDURE CHANGE AND DEVELOPMENT GROUP 
 

 

Minutes 
 

Meeting No. 5 

Location: IMO Board Room 

Level 3, Governor Stirling Building, 197 St Georges Terrace, Perth 

Date: Thursday 22 April 2010 

Time: Commencing at 10:00 to 11:30am 

 

Attendees 

Jacinda Papps Independent Market Operator (IMO)  Chair  

Steve Gould Landfill Gas & Power (LGP) Industry Representative 

Alistair Butcher System Management System Management 
Representative 

John Rhodes Synergy Synergy Representative 

Wendy Ng Verve Energy Verve Energy Representative 

Ben Williams IMO Presenter (10:00-11:00am) 

Greg Ruthven IMO Presenter 

Fiona Edmonds IMO Minutes 

 

Apologies 

Yin Heng Perth Energy Industry Representative  

Corey Dykstra Alinta Industry Representative 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 2 

 

Item Subject Action 



Meeting Minutes 3 

Item 



Meeting Minutes 4 

Item Subject Action 

The IMO noted SKM’s recommendation, that to remain consistent 
with the requirements of the Technical Rules, the following power 
factors should be applied: 
 

• Synchronous generators – most dispatchable generators: 
0.8; 

 

• Induction generators – some smaller generators: 0.95; 
and 

 

• Inverter generators – most wind-farms: 0.95 
 
LGP queried the basis for the IMO’s interest in the applicable 



Meeting Minutes 5 

Item Subject Action 

 
Verve Energy noted that the use of 0.1°C would not take into 
account any degradation etc experienced with older facilities. 
Temperature dependence curves based on 0.1°C increments 
would be difficult to provide to the IMO unless a facility gets an 
independent consultant to test for each increment. Verve Energy 
noted that to test at this level of detail would be impracticable. 
The IMO suggested that testing a few points and interpolating 
these to develop the temperature dependence curves could be 
considered.  
 
Action Point: Verve Energy to consider whether interpolating 
points (to 0.1°C) or rounding values would be most practicable for 
developing a temperature dependence curve.  
 
LGP stated that the notion of measuring a temperature to 0.1°C is 
unnecessary and would result in larger calculation errors. The 
IMO noted that it currently uses Bureau of Meteorology data and 
SCADA temperature data (for a number of Verve Facilities) as 
this is available at 0.1°C. The IMO noted that the alternative is to 
not use 0.1°C but to rather round to a higher temperature 
(conservative approach) which would simply making passing a 
test harder. 
 
Action Point: Working Group members to consider whether: 
 

• use of 0.1°C data; or 
 

• rounding values to a higher required MW level for all 
temperatures 

 
is the most appropriate option for determining the temperature 
dependence curve for a facility and provide the IMO with 
comments by 20 May 2010.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Verve Energy 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Working 
Group 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

4b MARKET PROCEDURE FOR CERTIFICATION OF RESERVE 
CAPACITY 

  
The Chair noted that the Market Procedure for Certification of 
Reserve Capacity has been further updated to: 
 

• incorporate the comments of the Working Group at the 13 
August 2009 meeting; 

 

• incorporate the Amending Rules resulting for 
RC_2009_10 which introduced the concept of Early 
Certified Reserve Capacity (ECRC); and 

 

• ensure consistency with the style and format adopted by 
both the IMO and System Management for Market 
Procedures. 

 
The following points (along with any agreed action points) were 
raised by the Working Group regarding the amended Market 
Procedure for Certification of Reserve Capacity: 
 

• Step 1: The IMO agreed to review the introduction to ensure 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

IMO 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 6 

Item Subject 



Meeting Minutes 7 

Item Subject Action 

be registered needs to be taken into account. The IMO 
agreed to consider.  

 

• Step 1.10.14: The IMO agreed to remove any duplication 
between the statements made in this step.  

 

• Step 1.10.17: The IMO agreed to consider separating this 
step into two separate steps. 

 

• Step 1.10.25: System Management suggested that the other 
factors for consideration should be delineated. The IMO 
agreed to review the drafting of this step.  

 

•



Meeting Minutes 8 

Item Subject 



Meeting Minutes 9 

Item Subject Action 

between the VoLL in the NEM and the prices required to 
encourage the provision of SRC in Western Australia.  
 
Action Point: The IMO to consider an appropriate alternative 
to the use of the VoLL from the NEM for determining the 
Maximum Contract Value.  
 
The IMO noted that the decision over which methodology 
would be utilised would be escalated to the IMO Board.  
Additionally, the IMO clarified that it would retain the option of 
specifying a cap on the availability price.  
 
Synergy noted that to get a better feel for whether the 
methodology for determining the Maximum Contract Value is 
appropriate it would need to consider the details of the SRC 
contract.  
 
Action Point: The IMO to consider whether it would be 
appropriate to provide Working Group members with a copy 
of the standard form contract for SRC.  
 
Synergy noted that decisions to run DSM are influenced by 
the differential between the availability and activation price. In 
particular, Synergy noted that the proposed methodology is 
more heavily weighted towards availability payments. The 
more that is paid via the availability price the lower the 
activation price will be and subsequently there will be less 
incentive to actually provide SRC when it is called. LGP 
stated that the maximum availability price could be potentially 
set at zero to provide more flexibility. The IMO noted that 
step 2.3.4 has been included to ensure the correct incentives 
are provided to SRC suppliers. 
 
Action Point: The IMO to update section 2.3.4 to provide 
greater flexibility in specifying the notional availability price. 
 
Synergy also questioned the applicable penalty 
arrangements should the SRC supplier fail to respond to a 
request for capacity to be provided. Synergy noted that any 
imposable penalties will have an important role in 
encouraging commitment and that this level of detail would 
be expected in any contracts. The IMO noted that any 
punitive arrangements to be included in contracts need to still 
represent a commercially desirable contract. System 
Management requested that prior to the IMO entering into 
any SRC contract it is consulted on the dispatch 
arrangements for calling that capacity to be provided.  

 

• Step 2.9: Synergy queried the reasons for deleting the 
publication of outcomes section. The IMO noted that the 
Market Rules which do not expressly allow for publication of 
this information. The IMO noted that it will be further 
considering changes to Chapter 10 of the Market Rules to 
allow for the publication of the outcomes of any call for SRC. 



Meeting Minutes 10 

Item Subject Action 

Action Point: The IMO to further consider any changes to 
Chapter 10 of the Market Rules to allow for the publication of 
the outcomes of any call for SRC and report back to the 
Working Group.  

IMO 
 
 
 

6 GENERAL BUSINESS 

 
Maximum Reserve Capacity Price Working Group 
(MRCPWG) 
 
The IMO noted that it would be sending out the list of MRCP 
Scoping Questions to be covered by the MRCPWG along with 
the Terms of Reference to Market Advisory Committee (MAC) 
members on 22 April 2010. Once comments from MAC members 
have been received the IMO will issue a call for membership of 
the MRCPWG to all of industry.   
 
MRCP Market Procedure (PC_2009_12) 
 
The Chair noted that Alinta had requested the Working Group 
discuss the appropriateness of the changes approved under the 
Procedure Change Proposal: Market Procedure for the 
determination of the MRCP (PC_2009_12). In particular, the 
removal of the values of the major components from the Market 
Procedure, with the intention to derive these values from the 
2007 Allen Consulting Group report unless a significant change 
has occurred (as specified in the Market Procedure). LGP noted 
that it maintains its support of PC_2009_12. The Working Group 


